
City of Pittsburgh/Allegheny County 

Task Force on Disabilities 

May 21, 2012 

Minutes 

 

Location:   First Floor Conference Room 

    Civic Building, 200 Ross Street 

    Pittsburgh, PA 

 

Members Present:  Aurelia Carter-Scott, Janet Evans, Richard McGann, Paul 

O’Hanlon 

    Chairperson, Katherine D. Seelman, John Tague, Joe Wasserman 

 

Members Absent:  Linda Dickerson, Sarah Goldstein, Liz Healey, Milton Henderson,  

    James C. Nochese, Jeff Parker 

 

Others Present:  Shirley Abriolay, Judy Barricella, Lester Bennett, Anthony Boule,  

Enrico Buccigrossi, Sam Cohen, Jack Dougherty, Diane Gallagher, 

John Hinsel, Chuck Keenan, Lydia Kennedy, Richard Meritzer, 

Brent Minweizer, Charles Morrison, Keith Partyka, Robin Smith 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mr. O’Hanlon at 1:05 PM. 

 

ACTION ITEMS 

 

Review and approval of April minutes. 

 

Mr. Wasserman made a motion to approve the minutes, which was seconded and then was 

agreed to. 

 

Review and approval of Financial Report 

 

Mr. Tague did not get the opportunity to email the Task Force the financial report but gave a 

verbal report. The Task Force had a balance of a little over six hundred dollars left for this 

meeting and the June meeting. There would not be any money left over for another meeting 

though. Mr. Tague sent an email to Mr. O’Hanlon, Mr. Noschese, and Ms. Seelman trying to 

determine with the excess money. Either do an annual June meeting or some kind of public 

hearing. Mr. O’Hanlon asked if there would be enough money for a annual meeting but not 

enough for a separate meeting. Mr. Tague responded that the June meeting was budgeted for but 

there would not be enough for a normal meeting but there is enough funds to have an annual 

meeting. He added that the Task Force could do a public hearing as an add-on to the meeting. 

Ms. Seelman suggested that they ask what communities need, it would be a good brainstorming 

session and provide insight to the Task Force. Mr. O’Hanlon if they were any costs for the 

meeting with County Executive Fitzgerald. Mr. Tague answered that he did not believe that there 

is any cost for the meeting. Mr. Meritzer said that if Mr. McGann or Mr. Noschese attended the 

meeting that they would need interpreters. Mr. Wasserman asked who was going to meet with 



County Executive Fitzgerald. Mr. Tague answered that originally it was going to be Mr. 

O’Hanlon, Mr. Tague, Mr. Parker, Ms. Hesh, Mr. Noonan, Mr. Smith and Steve Gland and Mary 

Esther van Shura from the County Executive’s office. He added that the purpose of the meeting 

was specifically for ACCESS. Since it was not a regular Task Force meeting there would be no 

cost and if there was any cost it would go through the County Executive. Ms. Seelman asked in 

this meeting that the Deaf and Deaf - Blind community would be represented. Mr. O’Hanlon said 

that he is finding out things about this meeting right now and he did not know who would be 

attending. He added that this was a meeting about adequate funding and was not sure if 

operational issues were going to be addressed.  

 

Mr. O’Hanlon asked Mr. Meritzer if it was feasible for the Task Force to add-on another hour for 

the conference room for the June meeting. Mr. Meritzer responded that no one has requested the 

conference room after the meeting and they can request another hour for the conference room. 

Ms. Seelman suggested that it would be a good idea to ask around from the people that are here 

what needs to be done. Ms. Carter-Scott commented that it would be a good idea to have an 

annual meeting to ask the community what their needs are since they have not done that in a 

while. Mr. McGann asked if after June there was going to be more money added to the budget. 

Mr. Tague said that he had not received any information from the County on what the budget 

will look like for next year. Mr. O’Hanlon said that the Task Force had the six hundred dollar to 

use it or lose it until June 30th which is the end of the calendar year, but after that is uncertain. 

He added that the last hour of the June meeting could be used as a community input opportunity. 

Ms. Carter-Scott agreed and added that the suggestions could be given to the Mayor or the 

County Executive. Ms. Seelman said that it would be nice to hear from the community now so 

they can think about it and organize it.  

 

PRESENTATION 

Who’s Your Brother - Enrico Buccigrossi 

 

Mr. Buccigrossi made his presentation for Who’s Your Brother, he stated that Who’s Your 

Brother is a non-profit online community that you can register and post a necessity and no matter 

what you post it is met with the community without the exchange of money. He gave an example 

of what the process was like. The situation was a person has their washing machine breakdown, 

the person could post the need to get it fixed and Mr. Buccigrossi’s job is to connect that person 

with someone who could help them. He said the website to go to was 

WWW.WhosYourBrother.Com and added that Mr. Meritzer had his number. He then explained 

the verification process. There are two different pictures of the volunteers on the website, the 

picture in blue means the person has been verified and the picture in red means that the person 

has not been verified. It is a security measure and when you go to meet the person you can take a 

validation paper with you to promote safety, they have ten key points of safety. He added that if 

someone felt uncomfortable at any point, you could meet with someone from Who’s Your 

Brother and exchange the service. He commented that Who’s Your Brother promotes 

brotherhood and relationships through the community. He discussed another event they had 

called Furnish for Free in which every first Saturday of the month they collect furniture and store 

it in a warehouse in Point Breeze. People can register and have their needs to furnish their homes 

met.  

 



He then played a short video of those who have registered and participated with Who’s Your 

Brother. Since the audio quality was poor Mr. Buccigrossi read the video over the microphone. 

“Who’s Your Brother.” “Someone who can help you with what you are going through. To lend a 

helping hand in any type of situation. I think that’s Who’s Your Brother.” “Who’s Your Brother, 

the message is important for people who need a new way of thinking and living.” “Growing up I 

remember, friends and relatives helping each other and feeling that we are in it together. You 

help me and I will return the favor.” “ Looking out for you, helping to raise your children if you 

got into a bind, it would help. Today there’s so much need. What’s in it for me? Nowadays for us 

to actually know who were living next to, know what their going through, their struggles and 

their triumphs, doesn’t happen often enough. I think the main thing is trust that’s what we’ve 

lost. Without trust there is not community.” “We don’t say hi to our neighbors. We don’t feel it’s 

important, but over time people helping people, people receiving help can build that trust. We’re 

all in it together.” “We can help each other to keep that feeling. I am not alone. It takes a village 

to raise a child. It takes family, healthy relationships. It really takes a village for people to grow 

in a healthy way. Embrace the mindset of Who’s Your Brother, it will be about helping those 

around you, recycling what you have and giving for free and freely receiving.” “Separate 

yourself from what you do at your job, you have a gift, a talent, something you can do.” “One 

person needed clothes, we gave them a gift. Emptied out a closet or throwing out a couch, maybe 

someone can use. Shows that you have value to someone else.” “We struggle with receiving and 

giving back.” It’s a whole new mindset or lifestyle. We can work together, really work together. 

We can become a community again.” “We can help each other.” “We can keep that feeling. I am 

not in it alone.” “I believe that WYB plays an important role to help people realize that you are 

not in it alone. You help me, I will help you. We will work together as a community.”  

 

Mr. Buccigrossi reiterated that this organization was all about community and it is done freely 

without the exchange of money. He also added that he would like to meet with the Snow Angels 

volunteers to have them register with Who’s Your Brother and get them posted on the website.  

Mr. Tague inquired how they handle furniture that is given away but is not in the best condition 

and made need to have something replaced. Mr. Buccigrossi responded that the workers in the 

warehouse get the furniture in the best condition they can so someone is able to take it home with 

them. Mr. Bennett commented that Who’s Your Brother should consider how accessible the 

website is now and how they can make it more accessible to people with vision and hearing 

impairments. Ms. Evans asked if she had a piece of furniture to give away but she could not 

transport it to someone who wanted it, would someone from Who’s Your Brother come out and 

get it. Mr. Buccigrossi responded that absolutely that someone could come out. He added that 

Susan Richter is the warehouse manager and they have vehicles and they can schedule times to 

come out and pick up a piece of furniture up. Ms. Seelman commented that Who’s Your Brother 

should consider having both female and male language in the organization. Ms. Carter-Scott 

asked if Mr. Buccigrossi could explain how Who’s Your Brother can get linked to the 

organization without having access to a computer. Mr. Buccigrossi said that it is true that many 

people do not have computers in their homes, but they can go to libraries or community centers. 

Ms. Carter-Scott asked what accommodations did they have for people with disabilities. Mr. 

Buccigrossi said that right now he was not aware of the issues that people with disabilities would 

have, but now that he knows he will bring them up at the next staff meeting and hopefully they 

could find answers quickly. He added the main phone number is 412-328-2301. Ms. Carter-Scott 

also asked if there was a place to comment based on the system of bartering. Mr. Buccigrossi 



responded that once there has been a exchange a recommendation can be made for the person 

you exchanged with and the whole experience in general. He said that the recommendation 

section was new, but it is an important part of the process. People can also flag a person too if 

what they exchange is inappropriate, but he has heard nothing negative about the program.  

 

Someone asked if there was any items that they did not except. Mr. Buccigrossi responded that 

he use to say keep in mind what’s practical, then he told a story about Bernice who lives in the 

Market District and raised 7 kids. Bernice could not afford a house and after meeting with Mr. 

Buccigrossi she posted her need for a house on the website. Now Mr. Buccigrossi says that there 

is no need too big or too small on the website. Mr. McGann asked if there was anyone on Who’s 

Your Brother’s staff to communicate with the Hard of Hearing, Deaf, or Deaf - Blind. Mr. 

Buccigrossi answered that he did not have anyone on his staff that knows sign language, but he 

said he is willingly to do whatever he needs to so that the needs of everyone can be met. Ms. 

Nellans asked if Who’s Your Brother was filling a gap that church communities and Goodwill 

did not. Mr. Buccigrossi answered that yes they are filling the gap and in fact some churches do 

not realize that their members need help. Mr. O’Hanlon commended the program and said it was 

really inspiring, he then asked if the organization was national or local. Mr. Buccigrossi 

responded that the organization has offices in California and Denver, but it started in the East 

End of Pittsburgh. He added that one man was funding the organization: Wade Redcross. Ms. 

Evans then asked if Mr. Buccigrossi could explain the process with more detail in regards to 

receiving services. Mr. Buccigrossi answered that once a person’s need is met, they are unable to 

post another need until they meet someone else’s need in their community. A unidentified male 

then asked in North Oakland if someone is trying to get rid of stuff, is there an easy process to 

get that done. Mr. Buccigrossi responded that there was an easy process to get that done. 

 

Mr. Buccigroossi said he was also leaving fliers and a sign-up sheet for Who’s Your Brother and 

also gave out his cell phone number which was 412-277-1390. 

 

REPORT 

Snow Angels - Jack Dougherty 

 

Mr. Dougherty came to give a wrap-up report of the Snow Angels program. He said that even 

though it was a mild Winter they were able to match 187 elderly or physically disabled seniors 

with 127 snow angels volunteers. All of the volunteers received Mayor Ravenstahl’s citizen 

service award and proclaimed April 5th Snow Angel Volunteer Day in the City of Pittsburgh. 

Volunteers were sent an evaluation in an email of the process and they had received good 

comments and suggestions. They are currently in the process of calling individually calling each 

of the 187 matched residents to individually evaluate the program and receive their feedback on 

it. A letter was also sent out to the residents who were unable to be matched with a volunteer to 

call or go online and get their name on list for the program next year. 

 

He next broke down the numbers of the program specifically. There was a total of 355 seniors 

and physically disabled residents applied for the program. 28 of the residents were ineligible or 

withdrew their name for various reasons. 62 residents had incomplete applications, meaning they 

did not hand in  



the necessary waiver and signature forms. 78 residents were unmatched with complete 

applications due to a lack of volunteers in their neighborhood, and 187 residents were matched 

with a volunteer. There was a total of 163 volunteers applied for the program. 32 did not fill out 

their applications properly. 3 were unable to be matched due to a lack of need in their 

neighborhood, and 127 volunteers were matched with a resident.  

 

In terms of volunteers the program partnered with four major groups. The first group was the 

Mount Arrick Community Center in Larimer, they had 22 school children server 30 houses in the 

East Hills neighborhoods: Larimer, Homewood, East Hills, etc. The second group was a 

University of Pittsburgh sorority Gamma Sigma Sigma where 20 college girls served the 

neighborhoods of North, South, & Central Oakland and the Hill District. The next group was the 

Americorps Literacy Group and they had five Americorps members serving in the East Liberty 

neighborhood. The final group was Beltzhoover Neighborhood Council and there were four 

members serving the neighborhood in that area.  

The main areas of need were  the southern neighborhoods of the City, specifically Beechview, 

Brookline, Carrick, Knoxville, & Mount Washington and they were the most challenging mostly 

just do to a lack of volunteers and an overwhelming amount of applicants. The second main area 

of need was the West End, especially the Sheridan & Elliot neighborhoods. There were not as 

many residents applying in the West End as in the southern neighborhoods, but there was a 

significantly less proportion of volunteers to residents in the West End. There were isolated areas 

in the east and north sections of the City such as the Hill District, Stanton Heights, Greenfield, 

Morningside, Marshall-Shadeland, & Brighton Heights where there were little pockets of 

residents where they could not get volunteers in those neighborhoods. Throughout the Winter on 

a rolling basis, they attempted to reach out to churches and community groups in those areas to 

try and get volunteers to match with those residents. 

 

Mr. Dougherty said that for next year there are a couple key issues. In terms of the application 

they are working with CIS to have the waiver and signature forms be available online and that 

would help the volunteers a lot because they would not send them back in the mail and they 

could not be matched up until they sent the forms back. Also they are looking to include 

language that says how far the volunteer is willing to travel so they can be a clearer sense of how 

much they are invested in the program. There were also minor issues with volunteers not 

showing up, or the volunteers showing up and the resident’s walkway was already shoveled so 

they want to include stronger language to show the volunteers they have to show up every time it 

snows, and let the residents know the need to give the volunteers time to shovel. The program 

allows for a volunteer to show up 24 hours after the snow ends to get there and remove the snow. 

The program will reach out to all volunteers and they keep a running list of volunteers from last 

year who would like to volunteer again this year, they also ask residents who have had the 

service done if they would like it again for next year. They are looking for potential partners for 

next year. Last year the program provided volunteers with a snow shovel, a five pound bucket of 

melting salt, and a safety vest. The shovel was contingent on the volunteer not already owning a 

snow shovel. The supplies were funded jointly by the Department of City Works and the 

Department of Citiparks. In the future the program would like to find someone to donate the 

supplies either a big company or a hardware store. The Public Works division headquarters were 

used as the pick-up/drop-off site for the supplies. Some of the issues were volunteers not finding 

the building, the division staff not knowing all the ins and outs of the program so there were 



bumps handing off the supplies. They are looking to other ideas for drop-off sites. They are 

thinking potentially senior centers,  YMCA’s and they are looking for other suggestions. 

 

Ms. Carter-Scott said that she suggested before to partner with City schools and she also CC'd an 

email to Who’s Your Brother to help get volunteers. She added a lot of people did not know 

about the program at least in her neighborhood and she suggested that they start earlier 

promoting the program for next year so people can learn about it. She also suggested that the 

program emphasize who their partners are which may create a bigger pool of volunteers as well. 

An unidentified male asked if they had thought about contacting the University of Pittsburgh and 

IFC and having them pass down information to the Greek organizations down there. Mr. 

Dougherty responded that they had not thought of that and that Gamma Sigma Sigma came to 

them. The only problem with Gamma Sigma Sigma was they had 20 volunteers but only served 

less than 10 houses because there was not a need around the campus. Ms. Seelman asked Mr. 

Dougherty if he had met Mildred Morrison at the senior center and Mr. Dougherty replied he had 

not. Ms. Seelman said she is a great person to talk to. Ms. Evans asked if they had posted a Snow 

Angels program on the City channel and if not she suggested that it would be a good idea. Mr. 

Dougherty responded that he did not think they had an ad for the program of the City channel. 

Ms. Seelman said that another group that had a great aging service was the Jewish Community 

Center and suggested they partner with them to send out information and it would get to a lot of 

the aging community. Mr. O’Hanlon added that it was a good idea to have a conversation with 

Mildred Morrison. He also suggested that people get home-delivered meals and some are in 

apartment buildings and that could get many potential volunteers for the program. Ms. Seelman 

said another great communication outlet is the UPMC Disability Outreach Community and if 

they could write something up she could send it to their staff through Mr. Meritzer. Mr. Tague 

commented that there are a fair amount of abandoned properties and he wondered if the 

volunteers shovel those sidewalks. Mr. Meritzer answered that the issue is the legal right to do 

that. Very few abandoned properties are unowned in the City, he said that what happens is the 

children of the original owner inherit the house and move to Houston or Timbuktu. Mr. 

O’Hanlon suggested that the City could enforce the law for the shovel the sidewalk and if they 

do not, bill the owner. He added the City could enforce that duty a variety of ways and said that 

the Snow Angels can become effective enforcing the law and you smoke out people that truly 

can't do it themselves. Then you create, offering this as being, instead of paying the fine, maybe 

you  sign-up for this program. They would  love you for it. Ms. Seelman suggested that they 

could do follow-ups on that. Ms. Evans suggested Mr. Dougherty to talk to Juanita who is the 

head of family units in the Pittsburgh Housing Authority about the Snow Angels. and her number 

is 412-395-3950. 

 

REPORT 

Airport Compliance Meeting - Paul O’Hanlon 

 

Mr. O’Hanlon said that there was a meeting that he, Mr. Meritzer, Ms. Van Shura, Ms. 

Barricella, and Monica from the Airport Authority attended. He said that a number of issues 

were discussed at the meeting. The issues that were discussed was the identification of ACCESS 

pick-up locations. The problem is the driver needs to find the passenger but cannot leave the 

vehicle unattended to find the passenger. The second issue was a relief area for service animals. 

Another issue was the procedure during emergency situations at the airport. Another issue was 



questions regarding the closed captioning by businesses at the airport. Another issue as the 

signage of the availability of TTY and videophones. Another issue was assistance for individuals 

that require an airport guide to assist them going through the airport. Another issue was 

education regarding service animals and other kinds of things beyond the relief area. Another 

issue was appropriate communication regarding things like gate changes, delays, and other kinds 

of information. Historically airports have used intercoms or speakers to announce that type of 

information. Another issue was training for wheelchair batteries, wheelchair battery storage, 

power chairs, and the whole dilemma of your chair coming back in one piece once you surrender 

it. The last issue that was discussed was movable armrests in terms of sitting, giving seat 

locations, and the training of handling of wheelchairs. He commented that it is more complicated 

than he thought of knowing who is in charge. He gave an example with closed captioning that 

the airport does not have the leasing to control putting on captioning in a business at the airport. 

He said often times the Airport Authority is one or two steps removed from handling the request. 

He said the airport’s understanding that essentially all the televisions have closed captioning and 

have captioning on all the time but he did not know if that was true or not. He said that they need 

to ongoingly monitor that. He suggested that if there was not closed captioning on all of the 

televisions that they should trigger a process and make it happen. Mr. Meritzer said that part of 

the problem with the meeting was because Monica had to pick up the phone and call someone at 

the airport to get information on the issues. Mr. McGann asked if all the airline screens had 

closed captioning and Mr. Meritzer responded that according to Monica all of the airline screens 

are captioned and most of the airline screens have digital information so they do not need 

captioning. He added that he observed the waiting areas have captioning on the screens because 

you cannot hear them but sometimes customers will asked for it to be turned off because it is 

interfering with what they are watching. He said we need to enforce businesses not to turn off the 

captioning because some customers want to because other customers may need it. Ms. Seelman 

commented that the earliest research in closed captioning resulted in findings that those who can 

hear do not want captioning and it interferes with their pleasure so they turn to closed captioning 

for those who cannot hear. She added that the technology is there but asked if the will was there 

to keep it on the whole time. Mr. McGann said that if people want to complain they need to 

complain to the company that leases the space in the airport. He added that people have to think 

who are they going to complain to, to get the answer they want. Ms. Seelman said that she 

thought the problem was contract wording. She said that part of the frustration is getting to a 

level of representation in the airport so they know who holds these contracts and interactions 

related to them. Mr. McGann agreed and said that it is important that they help improve the 

communication with the aviation safeguards for example. He told a story that he flew from 

Pittsburgh to Phoenix and he had to change flights to go from Phoenix to Tucson, and it was 

important that there were volunteers to guide him, but he asked how do you communicate in that 

situation.  

 

Mr. O’Hanlon said his takeaway from it was a long-term advocacy project. When the issue of the 

televisions in the restaurants came up, Monica told him to talk to the restaurants about it. He said 

his response was not to talk to the restaurants but the people who lease out the spaces for the 

restaurants. He said Monica responded that would not be the airport and the airport has an 

agreement with a vendor that leases the spaces out. He said that at some point in the contractual 

project make that an agreement that the captioning cannot be turned off. He said to the respect of 

the ACCESS drop-off location that he gave up because it was not clear what they could do, and 



it was apparent the airport was not interested in accommodating the needs of ACCESS. The 

decision was that ACCESS can park the van someplace, walk some distance, tell the passenger 

they are there, walk to and get the passenger in the van. It’s a long , drawn-out process that 

wastes ACCESS’ time, but from the Airport Authority all they say is too bad. Ms. Barricella said 

she respectfully disagreed with Mr. O’Hanlon and said that she thought Monica said that it was a 

federal law and the airport cannot do anything about it. Mr. O’Hanlon says the federal law has to 

do with leaving the vehicle, but they are a variety of other options they could do. He said that 

until recently yellow cab had a stand at the airport and a relationship with ACCESS, but not 

anymore. He reiterated that he did not feel the airport would be willing to go out of their way to 

accommodate ACCESS. Mr. Meritzer commented that even though the Airport Authority did not 

work with ACCESS, ACCESS stopped calling them about the problems and acted like 

everything was okay. He added with the exception of the ACCESS issue, anything the airport 

had direct control over they are in the process, or willing to listen how to solve it. He added that 

they did not know what to do over issues that they did not have direct control over and that is 

what they need to work with them on. Either figure out if it’s the responsibility of the vendor or 

the airport, he also agreed they need to have stronger language in their contracts. He said they 

opened a new relief area for service dogs. He asked if they should think about going to the FAA 

on changing federal regulations for public paratransit, or do they want to work with ACCESS 

and the airport to find an alternative. Ms. Seelman said that there must be a policy manual and 

incorporate it into guidance and make it a culture of accessibility. She said she would like to 

know what federal law imposes on them during contractual times like with the restaurants.  

 

Ms. Nellans informed the Task Force that in California (PA) they passed their own regulations 

that all public televisions will be opened captioned. Ms. Evans asked if the steering committee 

should talk to Holly or Karen about the airport situation or not. Mr. O’Hanlon responded that 

would be a good next step about the issue. He added that the meeting was difficult to talk about 

that issue because they did not know if ACCESS had given up because the airport was so hard to 

deal with, or was the problem solved. Mr. Wasserman added that the problem is with the pick-

ups and not the drop-offs. Ms. Evans said she would check on the issue with Holly, Karen, and 

Bill Nolan. Mr. O’Hanlon said lastly that it is really complicated to figure out what the objective 

is. He considered a big fundamental issue were the announcements made over the PA system and 

if you are Deaf, or Hard of Hearing you cannot hear them. He said that the problem is they are 

coming from the airline and not the airport. He said that the airline also sends emails and text 

messages and people who are technically savvy can get the message that way. He asked which of 

the two ways are they trying to perfect, or are they trying to create an alternative to the PA 

system, or both. Ms. Seelman said at this point it is multi-model and she feels at this time you 

have to have communication that is multi-model. She added all the legislation incorporates all 

kind of technology and she likes the idea of moving forward as a long-term project. Mr. 

O’Hanlon said that he sensed after Mr. Noschese gets back from Paris, they set up a meeting 

with those who want to move forward with this long-term project, and they can scope where they 

are. He added that he wanted Ms. Nellans to be apart of the meeting. Ms. Seelman said that could 

even have a teleconference with them.  

 

OTHER COMMENTS 

 



Mr. O’Hanlon asked the Task Force if they wanted to be a co-sponsor for a rally on transit 

funding on 3:30 PM June 8th, 11 Stanwix Street. There;s no financial thing but it is to inform 

people and get the word about the rally out. He hoped if they did co-sponsor the rally, they could 

send out an email with information about the rally. Mr. Tague made a motion to approve, and 

Ms. Evans seconded it. Mr. Meritzer pointed out that he had previously discussed this with the 

Director and he is not able to send out anything specifically lobbying and it has to be coached in 

terms of education. Mr. Bennett asked what the consequences would be to the Task Force if an 

email about the rally was sent out. Mr Meritzer answered that nothing would happen to the Task 

Force because it is unfunded by the City, but he has more constraints than they do. Mr. Bennett 

offered to send out an email about the rally through his email. Mr. O’Hanlon said there were 

mechanics on getting the email out, but asked for a vote to co-sponsor it. All were in favor of co-

sponsoring the rally and Mr. Meritzer and Mr. Bennett were going to work together to get the 

emails out.  

 

An identified male said that the Pittsburgh Interfaith Impact Network was having three buses 

drive from Pittsburgh to Harrisburg tomorrow and said he wish that someone could print up 

cards that say “call the Governor” so they can be passed out on the buses.  

 

Mr. Boule from the Pittsburgh Parking Authority gave a brief description of the new pay by 

license plate meters. He handed out a brochure for a multi-space meter, that is paid by license 

plate. He said it is going to happen in the City from June to September, all Downtown, Oakland, 

and Southside should all have these meters. He said the advantage of these meters was that you 

do not have to go back and place a sticker in your car after you pay the meter. He explained the 

process was to memorize your license plate, go to the meter, type in the plate number, it will ask 

you how you want to pay and for how long, then it will print a receipt if you want one. On the 

receipt it prints the license plate and people will have a resource to remember their license plate. 

There is going to be a huge marketing campaign, and they are trying to do ten thousand key fobs 

so people can right their license plate on the back of it.  

He explained that this is the first installation in the United States of the license plate recognition 

format. He added that the next step down the road will be using cell phones, people will be able 

to call a number, set up an account and be able to pay for your time at a specific meter.  

 

Mr. Bennett asked if you already have tickets on your license and if you go and pay it, will there 

be a tow truck waiting for you. Mr. Boule answered that it has nothing to do with ticket 

enforcement. He added that the enforcement end of this will be an officer having a device that 

talks to the unit and it will tell the officer if the time on a space is up or not, it will tell the officer 

the license plates since the single space meters will be gone, and if the plate is green there is still 

time on the meter, if the plate is red then the meter has expired. He added where you want to find 

out if you have tickets is the Pittsburgh Parking Authority website. If you have five unpaid 

tickets, and the last one is a 30 day delinquency, your car will be booted and if not paid in two 

days it will be towed. Mr. O’Hanlon inquired where is the device placed, how high is it, how far 

from the sidewalk is it, what kind of barriers are between the sidewalk and the ability to get to it. 

Mr. Boule responded that the meters are five feet three inches tall, they are 16 inches wide, and 

they are ADA compliant with sufficient signage. He said there will be signage to show where 

disability parking will be much like the signage now. They thought about adding a button to the 

machine asking if you were disabled or not but there would be problems with that and the 



machine would know if your telling the truth or not because it reads the license plate and if 

someone lied they would be given a $250 fine. It will be accessible as you come off the sidewalk 

and you can pay at any machine within the zone because it is license plate recognition and you 

do not have to go to the specific meter you originally paid at. Ms. Abirolay suggested that they 

should think of dexterity of trying to push the buttons on a machine. She added she has difficulty 

pushing the buttons at crosswalks when she wants to cross the street in the City. She also thought 

that cell phone access in the future is a great idea. Mr. Boule responded that it was a good point 

and they will do everything they can to make sure the meters are accessible to everyone. He 

added cell phones are definitely coming and they just have to take it one step at a time. Mr. 

Cohen asked if you are not near the meter you initially paid and need to add time, can you use 

any meter. Mr. Boule answered once the account is set up, they will have your information and 

be able to generate information to the unit that there has been a placement of money. He added 

that the City controls the hours and rates of the meters. They are working on the concept of 

having variable rates, these meters have been used in Europe but not in the United States. Mr. 

Meritzer said that Mr. Boule will attend next month and give a more thorough presentation and 

answer more questions. 

 

Ms. Seelman made a motion that the meeting be adjourned, Ms. Evans seconded that motion. 

The meeting was adjourned at 3:00 PM. 

 

THE NEXT TASK FORCE MEETING 

DATE:   June 18, 2012 

TIME:   1:00 PM. 

LOCATION:  First Floor Conference Room 

   Civic Building, 200 Ross Street 

   Pittsburgh 


